Baltimore Gas § Electric Spring Gardens Station
(B-1032)

Baltimore City, Md.

private, 1855

Statement of Significance

The Spring Gardens Station of the Baltimore Gas § Electric
Company was the primary gas manufacturing plant for the city of
Baltimore. It was built in 1855 to produce coal gas, and con-
verted to water gas in 1886. The plant remained the primary
source of gas in Baltimore until 1950, when natural gas was
brought to the city by pipeline from Texas. Spring Gardens was
converted to produce oil gas and was used to relieve peak
demands and any interruptions in pipeline service. The station

is still in use today.
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State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic

andlorcommon Baltimore Gas § Electric Spring Gardens Station

2. Location

street & number ~ Leadenhall Street ___not for public¢ation

city, town Baltimore ____vicinity of congressional district

state Ma 22 land county

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

__district — public X occupied ____ agriculture —__ museum
__ building(s) _x_ private _____unoccupied __ commercial — park

— structure — both — work in progress —_ educational ____ private residence

____site Public Acquisition Accessible —_ entertainment —religious

____ object —_in process ____yes: restricted _____government ____ scientific
—_being considered ____ yes: unrestricted industrial transportation
___not applicable _  po ____ military ____other:

4. owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Baltimore Gas & Electric Company

street & number P .0. Box 1475 telephone.moet. - 2545000

city,town Baltimore state and zip code Maryland 21203

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore City Courthouse liber JEC 1486
street & number Fayette and Calvert Streets folio 252
city, town Baltimore state Mary land
6. Representation in Existing =mistorical surveys
g none
date — federal _state ___ county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. §- (032

Condition Check one Check one

__excellent __deteriorated ___ unaltered —__original site

—_good ____ruins —__ altered — moved date of move
__ tair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Several structures still remain from the first gas manufac-
turing installation on this site, providing a good record of the
scale of gas-making operations in the mid-nineteenth century.
Although none of the original machinery remains many of the struc-
tures remain virtually unaltered. Because of the ready availability
of excellent coking coal in Baltimore, the Spring Gardens Plant con-
tinued to make gas well into the twentieth century.

The nucleus of the gas-making operation at Spring Garden was
the large stone masonry structure which housed the retorts. Built
in 1869, it was spurred by the post Civil War expansion of the city
and a boom in the demand for gas. The Retort House is a high one-
story building where semi-bituminous coal from the mines' of Western
Maryland and West Virginia was partially combusted to drive off the
volatile gasses. This was performed in retorts, large furnances i
which the air could be controlled to produce a minimum of burn and a
maximum of gas. The building is ten bays long and three bays wide
except for the western three bays which form an el, projected two
additional bays south. Its roof has been drastically altered, the
original now replaced by a flat roof.

A small group of buildings east of the Retort House formed an
early tomplex composed of an office, a machiné shop, and a valve
house. The scale of these structures indicates a much smaller level
of activity prior to'about 1860. The most unusual of these is the
small valve house. This octagonal brick structure sheltered the
valve stems which protruded from the ground and which controlled the
direction of gas flow from the producer retorts to the storage tanks
and the street mains. Nearby was the small office structure consis-
ting of a central mass and two flanking wings. A semi-circular arch
surmounts its central doorway and transom light. All three bays of
the facade are framed by heavy brick corbelling. Adjacent to the
offices is a shop building which formerly housed the machine shop.
This brick masonry building is a high one-story structive with a
steep gable roof surmounted by two smoke monitors. 'On the interior,
the machine shop is divided in half by a brick wall. The section
adjacent 'to the offices housed the machinery while the eastern half
housed a boiler and a small steam engine to power the shop. The roof
of the shop is supported by a wooden truss. The original gas produ-
cer building to the south and the holders on the north have been
demolished.

Several other structures dating from the late nineteenth centu
include the laboratory building and the present machine shop struc-
tures. The laboratory building is east of the old machine shop. Its

function was to test the quality and purity of the gas as it passed



8. Significance Survey No. B-1032

reriod Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
_1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ___ conservation — law — science
_ 1500-1599 ____ agriculture — economics _literature ___ sculpture
—1600-1699 _X_ architecture —_ education — military — social/
—_1700-1799 ___ art —___engineering ____ music humanitarian
_X_1800-1899 __ commerce ____exploration/settlement ____ philosophy ____ theater
__ 1900~ —___ communications X industry ____ politics/government ___ transportation
____invention ____ other (specity)
Specific dates 1855 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B _C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _ D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Spring Gardens Station of the Baltimore Gas and Electric
Company was the primary gas manufacturing plant for the city of
Baltimore. It was built in 1855 to produce coal gas, and con-
verted to produce water gas in 1886. The plant remained the
primary source of gas 1in Baitimore until 1950, when natural gas
was brought to the city by pipelines from Texas. Spring Gardens
was converted to produce o1l gas and was used to relieve peak
loads and any interruptions in pipeline service. The station
1s still in use today.

The Gas Light Company of Baltimore was formed in 1817,
making Baltimore the first city outside of England to be 1it
by gas. To meet the growing demand for gas and to prepare
for future increases in demand, in 1855 the company purchased
a 9% acre site at Spring Gardens to produce and store coal gas.
The plant soon became the primary station for producing gas
in Baltimore. The plant was converted to the production of
water gas in 1886. In 1902, the company began to enrich the
water gas by vaporizing oil in the gas. Also, in 1902 the
plant was expanded to produce 10,000,000 cubic feet per day.

It was expanded again in 1911 to produce 18,000,000 cubic feet
per day and a 6,000,000 cubic foot storage tank was built.

When Baltimore changed to natural gas piped in from Texas in
1950, the plant was converted once again to produce oil gas in
order to relieve peak demands on the pipeline and to provide
temporary service during interruptions in the pipeline supply.
The Spring Gardens Station is still in .use by the Baltimore Gas
& Electric Company 128 years after its initial construction.



9. Major Bibliographical References
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name
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11. Form Prepared By

Kevin Dolan , intern

Dennis Zembala, director

name/title

organization Baltimore Museum of Industry data: /83
street & number 1415 Key Highway telephone 2/ ~4808
city or town Baltimore dinta Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in. the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to:
Shaw House
21 State Circle

Maryland Historical Trust

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 269-2438
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Spring Gardens
B-1032
Baltimore City

7. DESCRIPTION (con't.)

into the street mains. Its brick masonry walls support a gabled roof
with a ventilation cupola in the center;-all carried on a light riveted
metal truss. The machine shop complex is comprised of three structures,
two of about the same date. These lie at right angles to each other and
the one whose facade faces east has an elaborate parapet wall. This is

a one and a half story building which housed the shop offices. Its roof
is supported on an unusual light metal truss composed of all wrought

iron rods. The second structure is a single story with a small shed addi-
tion on the west. This structure has a Fink tricomposite truss, c.1870,
supporting the roof. Invented in Baltimore by Albert Fink in 1852, this
is one of a handful of early examples of a type which later became a stan-
dard in metal. The top chord is timber, compression members of cast iron
and tension members of wrought iron. The last building in this group is
an unusual structure in that its roof is a heavy iron plate water tank.
The western end of this structure is the former engine room for the
machine shops. It is a high one story probably built to contain the steam
engine and/or boiler which the roof tank served. The eastern half of this
building is twe stories supported on heavy, square cast iron columns with
chamfered corners.

South of the machine shop complex is another early structure which
was added to increase the gas-making capacity of the plant about 1885.
This is a long one-story brick structure with Fink tricomposite trusses as
well. The building is a high story with two windows in each bay, one at
the lower level with a semi-circular arched top and a smaller square win-
dow above. Most of the openings have been bricked up.

Finally, the new valve house, built in 1916 make the beginning of the
modern era at Spring Garden. This structure has a high gabled roof
supported by a riveted, all-steel Fink truss. It shelters the valve stems
of multiple giant gas mains leading to and from the nearby gas holders.

The gas holders themselves are still in use thoughhbuilt at the same
time. These were built by the firm of Bartlett and Hayward, a Baltimore
machine shop which helped pioneer the gas holder and other gas and
electric utility equipment. The present holders represent the third gene-
ration of such structures. They are telescoping cylinders whose base
section rests in a tank of water. As they fill with gas succeeding sec-
tions rise inside the base each sealed to the next by a ring of water.
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An Early View of the Spring Gardens Gas Wor ks

the holder was torn down, but the buildings were used as headquarters
for the Company's Strect Department until 1905,

Although the Company had issued additional stock to cover part
of the cost of the new plant on Spring Gardens, the annual dividend
rate was increased to nine percent in 1856, and one vear later it was
raised to ten percent. The Company, however, shared its new-found
prosperity with the consumers, for the price of pas was reduced ten
percent. This gave a rate of $2.70 per 1,000 cubic feet.

The indications of handsome profits earncd by the Gas Company
very naturally attracted widespread attention, and ambitious promoters,
anxious to get into the business, were not wanting. In 1858 James
Wheedon attempted to secure franchise rights. owever, the City
Council refused to grant him the necessary powers. Although the Council
turncd down this offer of competition, and was unwilling to erect a
municipal plant, it appears to have been dissatisficd with the service
rendered by the Company. In 1859 the municipality offered a plan de-
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